
























































































































































































































































































































































possible to control the curfents in the rotor circuit.” See Liitze Dep. (JX-10) Tr. 10v1-104.66

Although Liitze testified about the crowbar design disclosed in the ‘221 patent, and GE
turbines in general, he was not asked whether the design disclosed in the ‘221 patent is best for
the invention claimed in the ‘985 patent, specifically with respect to claim 15. Mitsubishi simply
infers that the illustrated crowbar in the ‘221 patent must be the best mode for the ‘985 patent.

Mitsubishi’s reasoning, however, comes up short of providing the proof necessary to
show that claim 15 of the ‘985 patent is invalid. Even assuming that the crowbar design in
question is the best mode for the claims of the ‘221 patent, the fact remains that the ‘985 patent,
and claim 15 in particular, concern a different invention. Thus it is not clear that an embodiment
from the ‘221 patent necessarily constitutes the best mode for claim 15, even in the opinion of
Mr. Liitze.”’

Accordingly, it is not found by clear and convincing evidence that claim 15 of the ‘985
patent is invalid for a failure to disclose the best mode.

2. Enforceability

Mitsubishi argues that the ‘985 patent is unenforceable due to inequitable conduct before

% During his deposition, Liitze was not sure whether the crowbar design of the 221
patent was actually implemented in GE 1.5 MW turbines installed in the spring of 2003. In fact,
he pointed out that while the principle of the crowbar used in Figure 3 of the ‘221 patent would
have been used in GE’s turbines, the exact design would have to be modified due to the design of
other components. See Liitze Dep. (JX-10) Tr. 101-104.

%7 In connection with one embodiment disclosed in the ‘985 patent, the specification
states: “Crowbar circuits are known in the art and any appropriate (e.g., a circuit having sufficient
power ratings) crowbar circuit can be used.” CX-6, col. 4, lines 59-61. Indeed, Dr. Fogarty, who
participated in drafting the application for the ‘985 patent, testified that another named inventor,
Wilhelm Janssen, provided him with alternate crowbar designs but never singled out one as
preferred over the others. See Fogarty Tr. 2038-2039.
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the PTO. In particular, |

Mitsubishi argues that [

114



]

Thus, the identity of each inventor is material to the prosecution of a patent. Indeed, “[i]n
practice, patent examiners do not normally engage in determination of the respective

contributions of the individual members of an inventive entity as part of making an ex parte
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examination; rather, it is the responsibility of the applicants and their attorneys to ensure that the
inventors named in a patent application are the only true inventors.” Board of Educ. v. American

Bioscience, Inc., 333 F.3d 1330, 1344 (Fed. Cir. 2003) (footnote omitted).
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3. Conclusion on Unenforceability

It has not been established by clear and convincing evidence that the ‘985 patent is

71[
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unenforceable due to inequitable conduct.

E. Summary

It is found by at least a preponderance of the evidence that the MWT infringes claim 15
of the ‘985 patent, and that the GE Turbine practices the claim. The domestic industry
requirement has been satisfied with respecf to the ‘985 patent. It has not been established by
clear and convincing evidence that claim 15 is invalid. Accordingly, a violation of section 337
has occurred with respect to the ‘985 patent.

VII. Conclusions of Law

1. The Commission has personal jurisdiction over the parties, and subject-matter
jurisdiction over the investigation.

2. The importation or sale requirement of section 337 has been met with respect to the
accused products.

3. Respondents MHI and MPSA have sold for importation, imported and, or, sold after
importation into the United States, the accused products.

4. It has not been established that respondent MHIA has directly or indirectly imported or
sold an accused product. Consequently, it cannot be found that MHIA is in violation of
section 337.

5. It has not been shown by clear and convincing evidence that claim 121 of the ‘039
patent is invalid.

6. It has been shown by at least a preponderance of the evidence that the accused
Mitsubishi turbines infringe claim 121 of the ‘039 patent.

7. Tt has been established that the domestic industry requirement is satisfied with respect
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to the <039 patent;

8. A violation of section 337 has occurred with respect to the ‘039 patent.

9. It has not been shown by clear and convincing evidence that claim 5, 7, or 8 of the
221 patent is invalid.

10. It has been shown by at least a preponderance of the evidence that the accused
Mitsubishi turbines infringe claim 5, 7, and 8 of the ‘221 patent.

11. It has not been established that GE bractices any claim of the ‘221 patent. It has not
been established that the domestic industry requirement is satisfied with respect to the ‘221
patent.

12. It has not been shown that a violation of section 337 has occurred with respect to the
‘221 patent.

13. It has not been shown by clear and convincing evidence that claim 15 of the ‘985
patent is invalid.

15. Tt has not been established by clear and convincing evidence that the ‘985 patent is
unenforceable due to inequitable conduct.

16. It has been shown by at least a preponderance of the evidence that the accused
Mitsubishi turbines (both the original and EPSS versions) infringe claim 15 of the ‘985 patent.

17. It has been established that the domestic industry requirement is satisfied with respect
to the ‘985 patent.

18. A violation of section 337 has occurred with respect to the ‘985 patent.

124



VIII. Initial Determinatién and Order

Based on the foregoing, it is the INITIAL DETERMINATION (“ID”) of the undersigned
that a violation of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, has occurred in the
importation into the United States, the sale for importation, or the sale within the United States
after importation of certain variable speed wind turbines and components thereof by reason of
infringement of claim 121 of United States Patent No. 5,083,039 and claim 15 of United States
Patent No. 6,921,985.

Further, this ID, together with the record of the hearing in this investigation consisting of:

(1)  the transcript of the hearing, with appropriate corrections as may hereafter be
ordered, and

(2)  the exhibits received into evidence in this investigation, as listed in the attached
exhibit lists, is CERTIFIED to the Commuission.

In accordance with 19 C.F.R. § 210.39(c), all material found to be confidential by the
undersigned under 19 C.F.R. § 210.5 is to be given in camera treatment.

The Secretary shall serve a public version of this ID upon all parties of record and the
confidential version upon counsel who are signatories to the Protective Order (Order No. 1)
issued in this investigation, and upon the Commission investigative attorney.

To expedite service of the public version, each party is hereby ORDERED to file with the
Commission Secretary by no later than August 14, 2009, a copy of this ID with brackets that
show any portion considered by the party (or its suppliers of information) to be confidential,
accompanied by a list indicating each page on which such a bracket is to be found. At least one

copy of such a filing shall be served upon the Administrative Law Judge, and the brackets shall
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be marked in red. If a party (and its suppliers of information) considers nothing in the ID to be
confidential, and thus makes no request that any portion be redacted from the public version of
this ID, then a statement to that effect shall be filed in lieu of a document with brackets.
Pursuant to 19 C.F.R. § 210.42(h), this Initial Determination shall become the
determination of the Commission unless a party files a petition for review pursuant to

§ 210.43(a) or the Commission, pursuant to § 210.44, orders on its own motion a review of the

ID or certain issues herein.

Carl C. Chameski
Administrative Law Judge

Issued: August 7, 2009
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CERTAIN VARIABLE SPEED WIND TURBINES AND COMPONENTS THEREOF
INV. NO. 337-TA-641

PUBLIC CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Marilyn R. Abbott, hereby certify that the attached INITIAL DETERMINATION has been
served upon the Comm1ssmn Investlgatlve Attorney, Erin D. Joffre, Esq., and the following parties
as indicated, on

0CT 21 259

D N OL
f!mu@ N KBOsH
’ManlynR’ Abbott, Secretary JACe
U.S. International Trade Commission
500 E Street, SW, Room 112A

Washington, D.C. 20436

FOR COMPLAINANT GENERAL ELECTRIC CO.:

V. James Adduci, 1L, Esq. Via Hand Delivery
ADDUCI, MASTRIANI & SCHAUMBERG, L.L.P. »/)/V ia Overnight Mail
1200 Seventeenth St., N.W., Fifth Floor ( ) Via First Class Mail
Washington, D.C. 20036 ( ) Other:

FOR RESPONDENTS MITSUBISHI HEAVY
INDUSTRIES, LTD., MITSUBISHI HEAVY
INDUSTRIES AMERICA, INC., AND MITSUBISHI
POWER SYSTEM, INC.:

Thomas W. Winland, Esq. () Via Hand Delivery
FINNEGAN, HENDERSON, FARABOW, GARRETT (v'Via Overnight Mail
& DUNNER, L.L.P. ( ) Via First Class Mail
901 New York Ave., N.W. ( ) Other:

Washington, D.C. 20001



CERTAIN VARIABLE SPEED WIND TURBINES AND COMPONENTS THEREOF
INV. NO. 337-TA-641

PUBLIC MAILING LIST

Heather Hall
Lexis-Nexis

9443 Springboro Pike
Miamisburg, OH 45342

Kenneth Clair

Thomson West

1100 Thirteen Street, NW, Suite 200
Washington, D.C. 20005





